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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am Councilman

          3  Stanley Michels, and I am convening the

          4  Environmental Protection Committee of which I am

          5  chair.

          6                 I want to use this opportunity of

          7  today's meeting to discuss with you some of the

          8  important topics that the Committee will consider in

          9  the coming year.

         10                 The list of topics that has been

         11  distributed to you is not exhaustive, it is merely a

         12  starting point for today's discussion.

         13                 I wish to hear your views on these

         14  topics and suggestions of other issues and topics

         15  that you believe the Committee should explore and

         16  that I mean by either having legislation or

         17  considering legislation or having an oversight

         18  hearing.

         19                 There are many interesting and

         20  challenging issues before the Committee this year,

         21  the Solid Waste Management Plan, the closure of

         22  Freshkills, the quest to maintain the quality of

         23  water supply, in perpetuity with our filtration, and

         24  many other issues. I look forward to working with

         25  all of you this year on these challenges, and let's
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          2  begin today, and I would like to know if anyone has

          3  anything to say at the outset?

          4                 Sheldon, do you have something you

          5  would like to say on any of the materials that were

          6  distributed? As I understand it, you were looking at

          7  -- you had a statement you were considering?

          8  Everybody has been given a list of various topics,

          9  which is entitled, Committee on Environmental

         10  Protection, Possible Hearing Topics for '99.

         11                 Mr. Sabini, did you indicate you

         12  wanted to say a few words?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Yes, I do.

         14                 I just wanted to add something, if

         15  that would be all right with you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Sure, of course.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I introduced a

         18  resolution at the last stated meeting to address a

         19  problem that is of the moment in Queens County, and

         20  we have lots of co-sponsors and I introduced this

         21  with Council Member Spigner, that the EPA has all

         22  kinds of new regulations for underground storage

         23  tanks, and, yet, they have only eight inspectors for

         24  all of New York, New Jersey and Puerto Rico to study

         25  these.
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          2                 Okay, I understand, it is on the

          3  revised, or the second page. I didn't get the second

          4  page.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That's okay.

          6  Continue.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  I didn't get

          8  a second page here.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We do have it on

         10  the list.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Okay. Great.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But, please,

         13  expand on it. I would like to sort of set some

         14  priority here why you think certain issues should be

         15  discussed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: It has come to

         17  our attention in Queens in particular, as lots of

         18  these that haven't been inspected, part of Queens

         19  gets its groundwater, uses water through the ground,

         20  particularly in the eastern part of the borough, and

         21  these tanks are sort of hidden problems, and when

         22  people buy land later or try to build a school or a

         23  home and they find out that the ground has been

         24  contaminated, it is almost too late. And I am

         25  delighted to see it is on the second page of the
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          2  agenda.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, we also

          4  have to see the role of this City and what role they

          5  can play and having them go out, especially if it is

          6  hazardous, and most of these things were like

          7  underground storage tanks of fuel, so they could be

          8  hazardous materials. So we would have jurisdiction

          9  over it, even though the EPA is limited in their

         10  number of inspectors, as you say. And it would make

         11  the job of the EPA eight inspectors you say they

         12  have a lot easier if the City would point out to

         13  them where there are deficiencies.

         14                 I should introduce the Committee

         15  members. The Committee members are Mr. Fiala, Mr.

         16  Miller, Mr. Sabini and Mr. Leffler, and we will be

         17  joined from time to time by other Committee members.

         18                 Is there any other issue that anyone

         19  wants to raise?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Leffler.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: When is the

         23  matter of the circulars that we took up in this

         24  Committee before, maybe a year or so ago, and we

         25  said we were trying to do legislation to prohibit
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          2  the tossing of circulars in front of households that

          3  don't want the circulars.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Sheldon, I think

          5  there is some new proposed legislation that talks of

          6  modified legislation, I remember a number of members

          7  were concerned also about the plastic. They came in

          8  and they used to fall over the bags and we were

          9  looking to provide in some way --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Basically

         11  that it is a tip-off, the family goes away that

         12  nobody is home.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand the

         14  issue. But there was a First Amendment issue

         15  exploring ways around the First Amendment issue,

         16  what we wanted to do, as I recall, if you remember,

         17  that we wanted to make sure there is a provision

         18  that is adhered to in the circulars, that if they

         19  are done on a regular basis that the person has an

         20  opportunity to call and say please don't send these

         21  circulars to me. If they violate that, then there

         22  would possibly be a fine for violating the request

         23  to not deliver these circulars.

         24                 But we are still exploring that from

         25  a First Amendment point of view, seeing what
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          2  legislation there is out there in other

          3  jurisdictions.

          4                 Then we have also the legislation

          5  from the Mayor's Office on circulars.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I know.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And also the

          8  posting legislation, which is all in the same

          9  category, and we are looking to see if we can work

         10  on that together.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: With respect

         12  to giving notice to the distributors of the

         13  circulars that are not wanted, I don't think that

         14  has been done either.

         15                 I know I get on a regular basis

         16  circulars from at least a couple, maybe more

         17  sources, and I don't know who distributes them, how

         18  I can say that I don't want them if I don't want

         19  them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am saying that

         21  we are looking at legislation possibly requiring

         22  them to have within those circulars a number they

         23  can call to stop it, and if they still continue it

         24  then they can be subject to a fine, whether or not

         25  that is violative of the First Amendment.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I think we

          3  should try to cut through and either resolve it or

          4  say that we think the problem is --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, so far we

          6  have not been able to --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I myself --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There is also

          9  the Chinese menu issue and the, for a better word to

         10  use, but all of these menus are put under people's

         11  doors in apartment buildings or in private homes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right.

         13                 Okay.

         14                 There are a couple of bills with

         15  respect to the Right To Know Program.  One is with

         16  respect to Intro. 182, with respect to filing fees,

         17  that they be dedicated to pay for inspectors.

         18                 Another is Intro. 176, with respect

         19  to reporting under the Right To Know Program.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, as you

         21  know, we have always had problems with those because

         22  the Administration takes the point of view, and if

         23  we can persuade them otherwise, that monies by way

         24  of fines and other should go into the general fund,

         25  and the general inclination, not only with this
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          2  Mayor but the previous Mayor, about dedicating

          3  monies, and I think you are aware of that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I am very

          5  aware of it and --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If we can

          7  persuade them otherwise, I would love to see it.

          8  There is a great deal of frustration, especially

          9  over the hazardous materials, the hazardous material

         10  inspectors, where we were promised that if we added

         11  this money that they would increase the numbers, and

         12  the answer we used to get was, no, they are not

         13  increasing numbers, but what they are doing is they

         14  are training their inspectors to do other functions.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Well, my

         16  understanding is the members of the Hazardous

         17  Materials Advisory Board still think more inspection

         18  is needed.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, I agree.

         20  And I think we have heard from other agencies that

         21  it is very important, especially to the Fire

         22  Department and other agencies, when they are going

         23  to have to come into an area where there is possibly

         24  hazardous materials, if you know about them, so they

         25  can act accordingly to protect themselves,
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          2  especially on hazardous materials.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Related to

          4  this, can I request that our new good Council send

          5  me a copy of a bill I am told exists with respect to

          6  penalties for discarding household hazardous waste.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are you

          8  referring Alison Sachs?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Alison Sachs,

         10  right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: She is the young

         12  lady sitting to my right, that is what you are

         13  referring to?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right. Yes.

         15                 MS. SACHS: Do you have a number?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I don't have

         17  a number, that is why I ask you.

         18                 I am told that I believe a bill has

         19  been introduced that would set penalties for

         20  discarding household hazardous waste.  It seems

         21  that, you know, perhaps ought to be taken by the

         22  Committee. First I would like to see it, but it

         23  relates to the incident some time ago, many months

         24  ago, over a year ago, where the people who disposed

         25  of household hazardous waste and killed, I think it
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          2  was a Sanitation worker?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes.

          4                 MS. SACHS: I think we are going to --

          5  it is on the list.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As a matter of

          7  fact, it is on the second page.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right.

          9                 So there is a bill on that?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: All right.

         12  So, if you could send me the bill, I would

         13  appreciate that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There is

         15  legislation on that.

         16                 Do you agree -- there is legislation

         17  being proposed on it, I don't know if there is an

         18  intro yet on that.

         19                 There is not intro on that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Are you in

         21  the process of writing it?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It was in draft.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: It is being

         24  drafted for you?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Redrafting it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Is it for

          3  you?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I believe so.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I would be

          6  interested in being involved in that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Certainly.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: What you have

          9  on it, if you can release what you have, because I

         10  know somebody who is an expert in the field who is

         11  interested in the issue.

         12                 I am also told that you have a number

         13  five drafting priority of car alarm status indicator

         14  installation ban.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Excuse me? I

         16  couldn't hear you. Talk closer to the mic.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: You have a

         18  bill with respect to car alarm status indicator

         19  installation ban.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes. Walter

         21  McCaffrey and myself have legislation on that.

         22                 You are interested in that

         23  legislation?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Yes, I am

         25  interested in that, and I will be interested in
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          2  seeing what you have and --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, we are

          4  very concerned, and one of the things that bothers

          5  us is the State Legislature still gives a premium

          6  reduction in insurance rates to people who have

          7  these types of alarms --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Exactly.

          9  Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As an incentive

         11  to keep these things on, as much as the people in

         12  the City, save Staten Island where --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right. That

         14  should be banned. There should be no premium for

         15  having a noisy car alarm.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right, but that

         17  is one of the problems in --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: That is why I

         19  would like to join in that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What I would

         21  like to see is, to come out with, and it was

         22  discussed before, where you set an alarm, but it

         23  should ring in your apartment or your house and it

         24  doesn't have to annoy everybody in the street.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right.
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          2                 Okay, and the last item, if one of

          3  your staff members, one of our staff members, one of

          4  these staff members, could follow-up on an issue

          5  that we raised with Joel Miele a few months ago, and

          6  that is with respect to alternative fuel vehicles

          7  fueling sites, the fact that there aren't sufficient

          8  fueling sites for alternative fuel --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Excuse me?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right. The

         13  thing is, I asked him to give us information with

         14  respect to the percentage of alternative fuel

         15  vehicles that in fact operate on polluting fuels,

         16  gas. In other words, it's a joke. They are called

         17  alternative fuel vehicles, but they don't have the

         18  fueling so that they don't use the alternative fuel.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: So, we have

         21  to follow up. He said he would get back to me and

         22  give me the information on that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Has he gotten

         24  back to you?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: He has never
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          2  gotten back to me.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We will follow

          4  through on that. That precisely is the problem.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I know.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  There are many

          7  vehicles that we have in the City that use

          8  alternative fuels and has as a back-up a gas tank,

          9  and the reason we are told that they do not use the

         10  alternative fuel, that they are afraid they are

         11  going to run out of the alternative fuels and they

         12  don't have a place to refuel.

         13                 I understood there was vehicles that

         14  are being manufactured or kits that are being

         15  manufactured, which says that you cannot use the

         16  polluted fuels until you have used up all of the

         17  non-polluting fuels. And then of course we have the

         18  other issue with the MTA, and that is with their

         19  buses and we were supposed to get some 400 buses and

         20  those buses I was told was going to be non-polluting

         21  fuels, and then we heard they were coming in with

         22  diesel electric, which means they have an engine to

         23  produce electricity to run the buses, but the engine

         24  would be fueled by diesel fuel which is the most

         25  dangerous of all types of fuels, especially when it
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          2  comes to asthmatics.

          3                 And then recently at a hearing I just

          4  had up at the Local Government Advisory Board I

          5  heard something about biological fuels being used.

          6  So, a lot of this stuff, and there is a lot of

          7  research being done, and a lot of places things have

          8  been done, but right now certainly the City is in

          9  violation of Local Law 6, and we may have to revisit

         10  Local Law 6, because I don't think they are doing

         11  the acquisition either, because there is some talk

         12  that the vehicles are not available and that the

         13  kits are not working and they are not producing the

         14  fuels, and there has been a lot of talk on this and

         15  I have been talking with people of the

         16  Administration for a number of years now on this.

         17                 But I think you are right, too, to

         18  mandate the use, but we can't mandate the use unless

         19  we have places to refuel.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right. But we

         21  have places but they are so ultra -- I don't know

         22  what you would -- rather than fuel up with the

         23  alternative fuels, they say they are always pressed

         24  and they as a result operate on regular gas.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But there is a
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          2  lack of refueling stations.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Yes, there

          4  are a lack of, if there were more then they would

          5  use, you know, alternative fuel.

          6                 We also have an issue that the

          7  Council passed unanimously a bill to change the

          8  setting of water rates, as you know. So the water

          9  rates would be set after the budget is in fact

         10  passed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: You passed

         13  that unanimously in the Council. The Mayor vetoed

         14  it, the Water Board gave us an undertaking, a

         15  resolution that four years later they would change

         16  the dates for setting water rates so that they came

         17  after the budget, but when the date came last year,

         18  in fact they didn't do this.

         19                 We have legislation that might be

         20  looked at. Previously -- it is now Intro. 113, and

         21  it used to be in Government Ops as Intro. 72-A. You

         22  know, that would be a means of the Council having

         23  more influence on holding down water rates, because

         24  we could hold down the budget as a means of holding

         25  down water rates.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

          3                 But let me ask the Committee this, if

          4  you will.

          5                 We have to set certain priorities. It

          6  would seem to me that the most immediate priority

          7  would be the Solid Waste Management Plan. We have to

          8  get that looked at and analyzed, now especially

          9  since the state has come down with their comments.

         10                 As you know, we thought we were

         11  possibly under a 60-day clock, and we now decided,

         12  we were told by the State and by the City that we

         13  were not under such a clock. But nevertheless, we

         14  must expeditiously move to get a Solid Waste

         15  Management Plan, which I hope would not only be a

         16  plan for the future, it would also be a

         17  modification, an upgrade and a modification.

         18                 Now, the things that come to fore

         19  right now are, because the thing which is actually

         20  driving this, and the most important aspect of it,

         21  is the timely closing of Freshkills. And what we are

         22  doing now in order to in the furtherance of that --

         23  and you will see the first issue we say is critical

         24  issues, is the long-term marine export plan, and we

         25  want to have a hearing and testimony with respect to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  the access and the feasibility of retrofitting

          3  existing marine transfer stations in order to

          4  eliminate the need for Enclosed Barge and Unloading

          5  Facilities, as we know them as EBUFs, Enclosed Barge

          6  Unloading Facilities. The issue here has been raised

          7  by many people and we hope to have a deeper

          8  understanding as to why we can't retrofit the

          9  existing transfer stations, instead of having to

         10  build a new facility and use those for the purposes

         11  of expediting the use of the marine transfer

         12  stations for the export of the waste and not have to

         13  go through a long period and use of the interim plan

         14  where we are using land-based transfer stations,

         15  which we believe is undesirable and almost everyone

         16  in the neighborhood believes it is undesirable. But

         17  we are in court proceedings and everything else is

         18  going on, but those are the two most critical

         19  issues, I am talking about under the Solid Waste

         20  Management Plan. The long-term export plan, how we

         21  can expedite that, and how we can short circuit it

         22  and as much as possible the interim export plan

         23  which depends on trucks and land-based transfer

         24  stations.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Does anybody

          3  want to comment on any of that?

          4                 Mr. Fiala.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman.

          7                 Thank you again for being an advocate

          8  for closing Freshkills on time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, I think

         10  that is pretty much the mandate of this Council, we

         11  all feel that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Well, I am

         13  always glad to hear that.

         14                 Last year I suggested this, and I

         15  would like to suggest it again this year.

         16                 There are a lot of us who are new to

         17  this Council, I have seen Freshkills but I think

         18  there are a lot of new members of this panel that

         19  have not, and I think it would be instructive if we

         20  did do a site visit to Freshkills sooner rather than

         21  later. And I note that the Borough President of

         22  Staten Island the other day at Freshkills, there is

         23  new German technology, there is shrink rat

         24  (phonetic) technology.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, I saw that
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          2  in the newspapers. Did you see it operating?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: I was up in

          4  Albany, so I didn't get to see it. But I think it

          5  would be nice if we as a Committee got to go down

          6  there and take a look at the technologies that are

          7  currently being enforced and possibly new

          8  technology.

          9                 So, I would make that suggestion to

         10  the Committee and I would love to host --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I will take it

         12  under consideration with a positive U. But let me

         13  ask you this: That technology, if you know more

         14  about it than I do, once they wrap the waste, what

         15  do they do with it?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: I don't profess

         17  to know more about it than you do.

         18                 I will tell you what I can do, I can

         19  provide you and then you can provide to the

         20  Committee members, we will get you all the

         21  information we have on it, all right?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We would

         23  appreciate it. The Council will cooperate with you

         24  on that. I just read about it in the New York Times,

         25  I saw pictures of it also. Circular, like log, like
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          2  rolls.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Yes. And no

          4  odor whatsoever.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, that is

          6  very interesting.

          7                 Mr. Leffler.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: If in fact

          9  you have -- I am not in favor of requiring people

         10  who have been to Freshkills a number of times being

         11  forced to go through a Committee meeting again. I

         12  have better things to do with my time. Some people

         13  might find it useful to go once, for me to go the

         14  third time I think is excessive. So, I think it is

         15  going to be an optional visit for those who need to

         16  visit, or an excuse rather than a required meeting.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. I have

         18  been there also.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Then can we

         20  make it optional then?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You know, I

         22  think it would be extremely interesting --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: I will buy

         24  lunch.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Leffler will
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          2  then go.

          3                 But I think it would be interesting

          4  to see what they are doing by way of closing

          5  Freshkills. There have been certain moves and what

          6  really would be interesting is to go there to see

          7  the site of where they plan to do the export of the

          8  waste for Staten Island and how the transport system

          9  is working.

         10                 As I understand, there is supposed to

         11  be rail transport which is going to be employed in

         12  the use of that, so I think there are things that we

         13  can see that nobody has seen before. And when we

         14  went there we looked at the problems, perhaps it

         15  would be interesting to see -- and perhaps it would

         16  be good to go there to see what the solution would

         17  be, and how that is going to be handled, and then

         18  perhaps we can visit the other sites where New

         19  Jersey will hopefully allow us to build the

         20  unloading facilities.

         21                 Another high priority with us is the

         22  Procurement bill, which we have received a draft

         23  back from the Administration which we also have, and

         24  we put that out there and see who salutes it,

         25  so-to-speak.
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          2                 And then we really are way overdue in

          3  looking at the watershed, oversight of the watershed

          4  agreement, see how it is working out, and where we

          5  are on that. The newest development, of course,

          6  being the selection of Van Cortlandt Park and the

          7  site of the Croton Water Treatment Facility, and how

          8  that is going to work out and to see what they are

          9  doing as far as the watershed agreement and the

         10  watershed programs.

         11                 We do know land acquisition and we

         12  understood that much of the land acquisition has

         13  been converted to environmental easements so when we

         14  are not purchasing the land, we are purchasing the

         15  easements which would give us the right to restrict

         16  the use of those lands so as not to cause a threat

         17  to the water system.

         18                 The Farm Program, which is now

         19  outside the watershed agreement, to see how that is

         20  operating, the whole Farm Program, forestry and

         21  other programs.

         22                 And as far as other watershed issues,

         23  some of them have come to the fore recently, and

         24  that is the issue of the steep slopes with respect

         25  to the septic tanks and other threats, such as those
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          2  threats to the Croton Reservoir of the airport

          3  expansion.

          4                 Then we have the upgrading of the

          5  sewer treatment plant in the watershed, and what

          6  progress the City has made in not only upgrading its

          7  own facilities in there, but in helping to upgrade

          8  the facilities of the private individuals, and this

          9  is of course very much at the moment today managing

         10  the drought conditions, so despite the rainfalls,

         11  the heavy rainfalls in recent weeks, we still are in

         12  a drought condition, and that is extremely

         13  important.

         14                 I have already mentioned the

         15  alternative fuels and revisions of Local Law 6.

         16  Another item which is very close to my heart is the

         17  clean indoor air, the sick building syndrome, you

         18  keep hearing more and more of that where people feel

         19  that the circulatory systems within the buildings

         20  are not adequately maintained and the worst case

         21  scenario they develop Legionnaires Disease, and the

         22  best case is when people get tired and are breathing

         23  in too much carbon dioxide, as opposed to oxygen.

         24                 And finally, not finally but also

         25  extremely important is the brown fields. We have
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          2  many brown fields in this area and this is a

          3  national issue, brown fields is a national issue,

          4  whereas we have a super fund which does not involve

          5  the brown fields, however, the Clean Air and Clean

          6  Water Bond issue, which was passed with the approval

          7  of this Committee, and actually passed by the voters

          8  of the City of New York over the disapproval of the

          9  Upstate New York where we are supposed to be getting

         10  a certain amount of money to clean up some of our

         11  brown fields so to put up areas which have been

         12  polluted back on line.

         13                 But that is a very big issue

         14  nationally, and I can report to you that the meeting

         15  I had with the Local Government Advisory Board of

         16  the EPA Administrator, that the brown field issue

         17  was an issue that came up together with the main

         18  issue of the group which is urban sprawl, which is

         19  not much of an issue here in the City of New York,

         20  it is suburban sprawl which seems to be the problem.

         21                 Next we have the Hudson River

         22  question of federal EPA to complete its reassessment

         23  of the PCB contamination in the Hudson in a timely

         24  manner, and compel the responsible parties to

         25  remediate the contamination under the federal super
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          2  fund law.

          3                 I understand the Hudson River is the

          4  largest area of contamination in the country, some

          5  200 miles, and it's the largest super fund area in

          6  the country, it covers over 200 miles. So, we have

          7  to make sure that we get reassessments and they get

          8  the funds to clean that up.

          9                 We see today in the newspapers, on

         10  the front page of the Daily News, where there is a

         11  crustacean because of the cleanliness of the Hudson

         12  River that is now attacking the pilings of both the

         13  West Side Drive, to be known, if the Mayor has his

         14  way, as Dimaggio Highway. And Harlem River as well,

         15  that it is going to cost the City hundreds of

         16  millions of dollars to repair the damage done by

         17  these crustaceans.  And what was already talked

         18  about was the underground storage tank, the

         19  groundwater issues also as well and the Jamaica

         20  Water Service, and oversight of the Clean Water

         21  Clean Air Bond Act, how that money is being spent,

         22  especially with respect to replacing the

         23  coal-burning oil boilers, coal-burning burners in

         24  schools.

         25                 The gas station vapor recovery system
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          2  we are led to understand that everybody knows that

          3  every gas station has a vapor system, recovery

          4  system attached to the pumping of gas, but those

          5  have not been inspected in years and may be a cause

          6  of gross pollution.

          7                 The disposal of hazardous substances

          8  in the residential waste stream, as we talked about

          9  the possible legislation to protect the sanitation

         10  workers.

         11                 And last, but certainly not least in

         12  my book, and that is consideration of the lead bill,

         13  which is the modification of Local Law 1, Intro.

         14  205, which is in this Committee, with respect to not

         15  only the buildings, but current apartments, common

         16  areas of apartment buildings, day care centers,

         17  parks, recreation areas and schools. And that is

         18  pretty much the list of it.

         19                 Is there anything else you want to

         20  add? Please do. In addition to the things you

         21  already added, Mr. Leffler.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I have a

         23  request in, legal services request, 2872, which I am

         24  told is the third drafting priority of this

         25  Committee with respect to thefts of recyclables,
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          2  imposing penalties for people who go around and

          3  steal recyclables, for example, by night, and then

          4  they resell it themselves.

          5                 Another, I have a bill, Intro. 179,

          6  that would increase no posting penalties, and making

          7  clear each posting is a separate violation, the no

          8  posting law?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How does that

         10  interact with the Mayor's bill on posting?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I haven't

         12  checked that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I would suggest

         14  you look at it, because what we are finding, Mr.

         15  Leffler -- and Council Member Boyland from Brooklyn

         16  has joined us. Welcome. Look over the list, any

         17  additions you want to comment on -- I was watching

         18  an expose' on television a couple of weeks ago where

         19  we have a new industry in New York City. Because of

         20  the high cost of advertising that exists, they now

         21  hire young people to go out, post the entire City

         22  with new CDs coming out, especially with respect to

         23  rap music and to modern music, and we have to come

         24  back to that particular, even though it is against

         25  the law, evidently they feel that the fines are
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          2  sufficient to use it for doing business.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: They are

          4  small.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Another very

          6  important issue, and it hasn't come to the fore, and

          7  that is illegal dumping, and how we do with that. I

          8  would like to have some oversight on that on where

          9  we are on illegal dumping.

         10                 Mr. Leffler.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: The last item

         12  that I want to mention is, I have a legal services

         13  request, number 31 of 1998, for a bill that would

         14  ban gas-powered lawn machines.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Gas-powered lawn

         16  machines?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is the

         19  reason for that?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: They are

         21  polluting.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They use

         23  non-lead gas of course? Then there are enough

         24  electric machines around.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Yes, right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes. Well, we

          3  will have to see the pros and cons of that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Okay, please.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

          7  much. I welcome your suggestions.

          8                 Ms. Boyland.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman.

         11                 I was looking over a few things. I

         12  apologize for being late, we have a hot hearing

         13  going on --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As a former

         15  Mayor of the City of New York once said, "if you

         16  here before it ends, you are on time."

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I am on time,

         18  thank you.

         19                 Just I was thinking about something

         20  the other day as I was passing through Brooklyn.

         21  When it rained certain areas of East New York and

         22  into Brooklyn, there are gullies in my area where

         23  people or actually residences, their houses down

         24  inside of -- I guess the area is plateaued up, but

         25  it has to be some kind of environmental effort or
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          2  something put forward, because these people that are

          3  living down in the gully areas, and I think they are

          4  off of Linden Boulevard, as far as fumes, as far as

          5  water, as far as irrigation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is this a

          7  similar problem in which they face in Springfield

          8  Gardens?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes. I mean,

         10  as far as --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is an issue

         12  of proper drainage and giving you the capital money

         13  to go in there and do it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Proper

         15  drainage, and also looking at the land and being

         16  able to clean up the land.

         17                 Now, I was also looking at something

         18  where they had clusters of people -- I was looking

         19  at something on TV and they had clusters of people

         20  as far as water pollution is concerned, with

         21  industries and things in there, and everyone all of

         22  a sudden came up with cancer or something, or

         23  diabetes from one particular area, now there has not

         24  been a formal study to see if everyone living down

         25  in these areas off of maybe Linden Boulevard have
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          2  all come up with the same kind of illness, but they

          3  are living in areas where water and sewage just sits

          4  after it rains, it has to be some sort of health

          5  violation there for people that are living down

          6  there, and that is something --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, I think

          8  you ought to consult the Department of Health on

          9  that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And as well as

         12  DEP coming out and letting us know what is going on

         13  there. But if it is stagnant pools of water, it is

         14  also dangerous with respect to mosquitoes, as well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And also,

         16  what about in areas where it used to be landfills?

         17  The fumes coming out from areas like Starrett City

         18  still. Not as bad as it used to be maybe ten years

         19  ago, there are still --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: According to

         21  what category they fit under, whether they are a

         22  super fund area or a brown field area. Brown field

         23  is mostly old manufacturing.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes, off of

         25  the Belt Parkway still, if you go past Starrett
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          2  City, it is not a smell like it used to be, but it

          3  is still some fumes that come off where they used to

          4  have the landfills over on the Belt Parkway over

          5  there, and I think particularly in Brooklyn, not

          6  just my area, but as I go through and they are

          7  building new developments and all things are going

          8  on.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is a genuine

         10  question, and I think you should isolate the area

         11  and write a letter and sending us the copy and let

         12  us find out what is going on, maybe we will have an

         13  overall hearing on areas like that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: That might be

         15  something we might want to put on the agenda for

         16  hearing topics.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: As far as the

         19  community is concerned. And those are some of the

         20  things --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Anything else?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: No, I think

         23  that is it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, does

         25  anybody else have any suggestions?
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          2                 Okay, well, I think we have covered a

          3  large area of much work to be done. We have time to

          4  do it, and I am very pleased that everybody more or

          5  less is in agreement and there are few objections to

          6  what we have proposed.

          7                 So I am very pleased to say that this

          8  hearing is over, and we have our work cut out for

          9  us. There are many topics. Anybody who doesn't think

         10  this Committee has things to do is sadly mistaken.

         11  That being the case, the meeting is hereby

         12  adjourned.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 2:17 p.m.)
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